
 

 

 
Date of issue: 7th June, 2013  

 
  

MEETING  LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 (Councillors Mittal(Chair), Davis and Plimmer) 
  
DATE AND TIME: MONDAY, 17TH JUNE, 2013 AT 10.00 AM  
  
VENUE: SAPPHIRE SUITE 5, THE CENTRE, FARNHAM ROAD, 

SLOUGH, SL1 4UT 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

TERESA CLARK  
 
01753 875018 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 

 
RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 

AGENDA 

 
PART I 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 
 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 

 
1.   Declarations of Interest 

 
  

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest in 
any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare 
that interest and, having regard to the circumstances 
described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 3.27 of the 

  



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not have 
a declarable interest. 
 
All Members making a declaration will be required to 
complete a Declaration of Interests at Meetings form 
detailing the nature of their interest. 

 
2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 8th March, 

2013 
 

1 - 8  

3.   Guidance on Predetermination/Predisposition - To 
Note 
 

9 - 10  

 LICENSING ISSUES 
 

4.   Review of Premises Licence, Drinks Direct 
Supermarket, 256 High Street, Langley, Slough. 
 

11 - 52 Foxborough 

5.   Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

  

 It is recommended that the press and public be 
excluded from the remainder of the meeting as the 
items to be considered contain exempt information 
relating to individuals as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 
2 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

 

  

PART II 
 
6.   Private Hire Driver Conduct Hearing (Reference 

01-13) 
 

53 - 72  

7.   Private Hire Driver Conduct Hearing (Reference 
02-13) 
 

73 - 82  

8.   Private Hire Driver Conduct Hearing (Reference 
03-13) 
 

83 - 98  

9.   Private Hire Driver Conduct Hearing (Reference 
04-13) 
 

99 - 126  

 

   

 Press and Public  
   

You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You 
will however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  
 

 



 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee – Meeting held on Friday, 8th March, 2013. 
 

Present:-  Councillors Sohal (Chair), Malik and Plimmer 

  

Officers Present:-  Kuldip Channa, Principal Solicitor, Teresa Clark, Senior 
Democratic Services Officer, Dean Cooke, Senior Trading  
Standards Officer, Richard Garnett, Environmental Health 
Officer, Mick Sims, Licensing Manager 

 
PART 1 

36. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Sohal declared that he had visited the premises recently to 
familiarise himself with the layout of the shop. He had not spoken to anyone 
during the visit.  
 

37. Guidance on Predetermination/ Predisposition  
 
Members confirmed that they had read and understood the guidance note on 
Predetermination and Predisposition. 
 

38. Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 15th January 2013  
 
Resolved –   That the minutes of the meeting held on 15th January 2013, be 

approved as a correct record subject to an amendment under 
minute number 33 to the title of Mrs Channa, to read ‘Principal 
Solicitor’, Slough BC.  

 
39. Review of premises Licence: S D Wines, 131 Bath Road, Slough  

 
Following introductions the procedure for the hearing was outlined. The Chair 
confirmed that all parties had received a copy of the relevant paperwork. 
 
At the commencement of the hearing, Mr Bahal, representing Mr Surinder Pal 
Singh Rajansi, questioned whether the Sub-Committee had received a 
petition submitted to the Licensing Office on 18th February and a  local 
newspaper article. Mr Sims, Licensing Manager advised that he had not 
received the documents in question. In response to a question by Mrs 
Channa, Mr Kulvinder Rajasansi confirmed that the documents had not been 
forwarded to Democratic Services.  
 
Mr Bahal contended that the petition and the newspaper article carried some 
weight and it was important that the Sub-Committee have sight of these 
documents. He also stated that he could not see any audio equipment 
available to play the taped interviews and it had been agreed that these would 
be made available when the case was previously adjourned. Mr Bahal also 
requested that CCTV footage of the incident in question be made available 
during the hearing. Mrs Channa confirmed that the decision of the previous 
Sub-Committee was that the hearing be adjourned so that the scripts of the 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 08.03.13 

 

interview content be made available and these had been included within the 
agenda papers. 
 
Ms Pearmain, representing Thames Valley Police (TVP), objected to the 
submission of additional evidence on the grounds that there was sufficient 
time prior to the hearing for this to be circulated.  
 
The Sub-Committee adjourned at 10.35 am to decide whether the documents 
referred to by Mr Bahal should be tabled for consideration. 
 
The Sub-Committee re-convened at 10.47 am. The Chair advised that 
objections had been noted but the Sub-Committee had decided that in order 
to ensure  a fair hearing, the petition and the newspaper article would be 
tabled and considered. Mr Bahal was reminded however that the purpose of 
the hearing was to review the premises licence because there had been a 
failed test purchase exercise. The Sub-Committee decided that the CCTV 
could not be played at the hearing as this formed part of the legal prosecution 
case. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10.55 am so that the relevant documents could be 
copied and tabled for all parties present. The contents of the documents were 
noted and the hearing reconvened at 11.10 am.  
 
Introduction by the Council’s Licensing Officer 
 
Mr Sims referred the Sub-Committee to the report set out in the agenda 
papers. Options available to the Sub-Committee were outlined for Members 
consideration.  
 

It was confirmed that the Licence Holder was Mr Surinder Pal Singh 
Rajasansi, and that the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was his son, 
Mr Kulvinder Vir Rajasansi. The review had been requested under the 
grounds of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety, and the 
Protection of Children from Harm.  The Sub-Committee was advised that the 
review was brought due to the sale of 1 pack of 10 “Benson and Hedges 
Gold” cigarettes i.e. an aged restricted product to an underage person, on 29th 
June 2012, that the premises was the subject of a previous Review 
Application in 2006 made by Thames Valley Police. On that occasion, the 
License conditions had been breached as alcohol was sold to an underage 
person and the CCTV system not working properly. At the previous review 
hearing the Sub-Committee had decided to remove Mr Surinder Rajasansi as 
the Designated Premises Supervisor and suspend the premises licence for 
the sale of alcohol for one month.  It was highlighted that the premises had 
been tested on 11 occasions for age restricted products and two sales had 
been made.    
 
Mr Sims discussed the responses received from the Responsible Authorities, 
and the  Premises Licence holder.  He also referred the Sub-Committee to the 
relevant guidance published under S182 of the Licensing Act 2003 which 
detailed the matters that Members should have regard to and the steps it 

Page 2



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 08.03.13 

 

could take when reviewing a premises licence. It was also recommended that 
the Sub-Committee make use of the ‘yellow card system’. 
 
Questions to Licensing Officer  
 
None at this point. 
 
Representations made by Trading Standards  
 
Mr Cooke, Senior Trading Standards Officer, explained why a review of the 
premises licence had been sought. On 29th June 2012 a Trading Standards 
test purchasing exercise was carried out by Slough Trading Standards and 
TVP.  Officers visited SD Wines, 131, Bath Road, Slough and an underage 
volunteer was sent in to the store and was able to purchase a pack of 10 
Benson and Hedges cigarettes. At no time was the purchaser asked for proof 
of their age. The same volunteer had been sent in to other premises earlier in 
the evening and had been refused sales. Mr Cooke confirmed that person 
who served the volunteer was Mr Surinder Rajasansi, the Premises Licence 
Holder. It was highlighted that a further volunteer was later sent in to the store 
and was refused a sale of alcohol. The Sub-Committee noted that in the last 
10 years, the premises had been tested 11 times and that one sale had been 
made for alcohol and one for cigarettes (the case under discussion). 
 
Mr Cooke was concerned that currently a limited number of staff operated the 
tills and the shop operated a late licence until 2 am. He did not accept the 
claim made that the under age sale was due to an error of judgement and 
reminded the Sub-Committee that it was a criminal offence, in the same way 
that drink driving was an offence. The review had been brought on the 
grounds of the protection of children from harm. Trading Standards Services 
recommended that the following conditions be placed on the licence:the sale 
of any restricted product should not  take place any later than 11.00pm, that 
an ‘Over 21’s only’ policy for all age restricted products be introduced, and 
that Mr Surinder Rajasansi be prohibited from selling all or any age restricted 
products. Mr Cooke commented that Mr Surinder Rajasansi was not 
sufficiently vigilant and it was he who had been personally responsible for the 
failed test purchase in 2006. 
 
Questions to Trading Standards Officer  
 
Mr Bahal asked for clarification on what could initiate a review and the 
suggestion of not restricting the hours but the sale of any restricted products. 
Mr Cooke referred to ‘Lacors’ Guidance and advised that the restriction of age 
restricted products was being sought, not a restriction on opening hours.   
 
Representations made by TVP 
 
Ms Pearmain advised that she supported the recommendations and 
confirmed that TVP had also requested that consideration be given to the 
addition of a number of further conditions to be imposed on the Premises 
Licence, namely: 

Page 3



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 08.03.13 

 

• All staff involved in the sale of alcohol to be Personal Licence 
Holders. 

• CCTV images to be kept for 31 days and made available upon the 
request of Thames Valley Police employees and Local Authority 
Licensing and Trading Standards Officers. 

• DPS or nominated person to be trained on how to work the CCTV 
system to the standard where the nominated person is able to 
download any potential evidence required by Thames Valley Police 
employees. 

• To participate in any UV marking scheme if requested by Thames 
Valley Police or Trading Standards. 

• Refusals Register to be on the premises and kept up to date and 
made available upon the request of Police, Trading Standards 
Officers and Local Authority Licensing Officers. 

• The DPS and management shall ensure that an EPOS/Till prompt 
system is installed and operated at all times. 

Representations made by PC Bradfield, Thames Valley Police 

PC Bradfield discussed antisocial behaviour incidents at properties opposite 
the SD Wines premises and street drinking. He advised that some individuals 
who had been drinking on the street had entered SD Wines and were refused 
the sale of alcohol at 11.30 pm. (Mr Rajasansi later disputed this and stated 
that it was not possible to walk into the shop at that time of night). 

Representations made by Richard Garnett, Environmental Health Officer 

Mr Garnett referred to a survey of antisocial behaviour that had been 
undertaken in Ladyday Place and Glentworth Place where it was found that  
people being drunk or rowdy in public places was a significant problem for 
residents. He referred to incidents of rough sleeping and drunkeness in public 
and suggested that a can marking scheme could be useful to track whether 
the public nuisance problems were linked to alcohol sales from SD Wines. Mr 
Garnett supported the restriction of the sale of age restricted products at the 
premises to 11.00 pm.  

Questions by the Sub-Committee 

In response to a Member question regarding whether there had been any 
cases of proxy sales, Ms Pearmain advised that there had been none. 

A member questioned how many food outlets there were in the vicinity of the 
premises and was advised that there were 5 in Tuns Parade. He asked 
whether rubbish left in the vicinity could be from these outlets and was 
advised by Mr Garnett that a lot of the rubbish was alcohol cans and the other 
premises did not sell alcohol (apart from the Three Tuns Public House). 

Mrs Channa asked how many of the incidents referred to by Environmental 
Health were linked to SD Wines and was advised that it was thought that 
individuals were obtaining some or all of their alcohol from the premises. It 
was then conceded that there was no evidence that the cans were from SD 
Wines.  

Page 4



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 08.03.13 

 

Response by Mr Kulvinder Rajasansi to Mr Garnett’s submission 

Mr Rajasansi contended that the reason the Environmental Health Team had 
visited the locality was because he had personally requested the visit 
following concerns reagrding the amount of rubbish near to his premises. He 
felt that other premises were not ’pulling their weight’ and therefore the 
problem had becom e worse. He advised that SD Wines did not sell any 
strong ciders after 11 pm and also highlighted that there were two other off-
licence premises on Farnham Road, three minutes walk away from SD Wines. 

Questions to Mr Cooke from Mr Bahal 

Mr Bahal asked Mr Cooke to confirm that his statement in the report that Mr 
Surinder Pal Singh Rajasansi was the Designated Premises Supervisor was 
incorrect. Mr Cooke confirmed that this was the case and that he was the 
Premises Licence Holder. Mr Bahal asked whether it had been intended that 
there would be two test purchases on the night in question and Mr Cooke 
advised that the second test for alcohol was conducted on the spur of the 
moment and other stores were tested in the same way.  He confirmed that the 
second volunteer entered the premises after the first volunteer and not at the 
same time. 

Mr Bahal asked whether the LACORS guidance was set in legislatiion and Mr 
Cooke confirmed that it was guidance, the purpose of which was to provide a 
consistent approach in Licensing matters.  In response to a question as to 
whether tobacco was covered by the Licensing Act, Mr Cooke advise that it 
was not and this was a frequently held a mis-conception. Mr Bahal questioned 
whether the Sub-Committee had the authority under the Act to restrict the sale 
of items and was advised by Mrs Channa that the Sub-Committee could 
modify a licence to meet the Licensing objectives and could also add 
conditions to a licence. 

Mr Bahal asked Mr Garnett whether the survey was conducted prior to the 
review and was advised that it was carried out in October 2012 and was not 
linked to the review. He confirmed that when he had visited SD Wines he was 
not aware of the test purchase.  

In response for clarification by Mrs Channa, Mr Cooke advised that a Trader 
pack was given to all premises. This covered a number of issues including the 
requirements of legislation, penalties, a suggested template for a refusals 
register and age related displays.  It was confirmed that Mr Rajasansi had 
signed up to an age Policy scheme. 
 
Representations made by the Premises Licence Holder  
 
In addition to the representations made by the Premises License Holder, set 
out in the report, Mr Bahal advised that his client had been in business for 30 
years and SD Wines had existed for 18 years. He acknowledged that Mr 
Surinder Rajasansi had failed a test purchase in 2006 but this was the only 
one failed of eleven. Mr Bahal stated that Mr Rajasansi had made the sale in 
error and this was due to mistaken identity- he thought the purchaser was the 
son of a friend who is 19 years of age. It was highlighted that the shop 

Page 5



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 08.03.13 

 

provided sustenance for 10 people and the conditions suggested by the 
Licensing Officer were disproportionate.  
 
Mr Kulvinder Rajasansi advised the Sub-Committee that family tried to run the 
business honestly. CCTV had been installed, cameras had been placed 
outside the shop and strides had been made in dealing with inappropriate 
customers. There were many corporate offices next to the shop. His father 
had given evidence when he had witnessed an assault on a police officer. He 
felt that the License Holder was being victimised and never sold alcohol to 
drunks hanging round the locality.  It was argued that the volunteer who had 
been sold cigarettes looked over 21 years of age but this could not be proved 
as the production of photographs had  not been allowed.  
 
Mr Bahal argued that the whole process could have been resolved in a more 
amicable way. 
  
Summing Up  
 
Having discussed the detail of conditions and whether the Premises License 
Holder was in agreement to these, all parties provided a brief summary. The 
Licensing Officer reminded Members that their decision should be made 
having regard to public interest and in consideration of recommendations put 
forward by those who were party to the review procedure.  The Trading 
Standards Officer reminded the Sub-Committee that a criminal offence had 
been committed and the need to bring the review was a requirement of 
legislation. He confirmed his recommendations which included that Mr 
Surinder Rajasansi should be prohibited from selling age related products. 
 
Ms Pearmain emphasised that the Designated Premises Holder and the 
Licence Premises Holder were required to ensure that Licensing objectives 
were met.  
 
Mr Bahal did not feel that the right approach had been taken and on occasion 
everyone made a mistake. He requested that the Sub-Committee did not 
‘debar’ Mr Surinder Rajasansi as he had dependendents. Further, if he was 
not allowed to sell age restricted products he would not be allowed to sell 
aspirin for example. He concluded that the person who had been sold the 
cigarettes looked over the age of 21 but he had not been allowed to show 
photos of this person in to the Sub-Committee in evidence. 
 
Mrs Clark, Senior Democratic Services Officer, advised the Sub-Committee 
that the petition tabled at the meeting did not show the address of the 
petitioners as required by the Council’s Constitution and only the postcode 
and the name of the individual. This was noted by the Sub-Committee. Mrs 
Channa reminded the Sub-Committee that it was required to consider all four 
of the Licensing Ojectives when reaching its decision.  
 
Following the summing up, the parties left the meeting at 1.45 pm in order for 
the Sub-Committee to deliberate. 
 

Page 6



 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 08.03.13 

 

Decision 
 
The Sub-Committee re-convened at 2.10 pm and all parties were asked to re-
join the meeting.  
 
Having carefully considered all the information available, the Sub-Committee 
decided to impose the following on the Premises Licence: 
 
A. the premises be issued with a yellow card warning for a period of 12 

months commencing from 8th March 2013. 
 
It was held that in relation to the issue of a yellow card, that this was a strict 
warning and any further review may mean that revocation of the Premises 
Licence was the only reasonable and proportionate option available to the 
Licensing Authority.   
 
B.  the following Conditions be included on the Premises Licence 

commencing 8th  March 2013:- 
 

1. That an Over 21s policy for all age restricted products be 
implemented . 

2. That CCTV images be kept for 31 days and made available on the 
request of Thames Valley Police and/or Local Authority Licensing 
and Trading Standards Officers. 

3. That a refusal register be maintained on the premises, kept up to 
date and made available upon the request of Police, Trading 
Standards Officers and Local Authority Licensing Officers.  

 
In addition, the Sub-Committee made the following recommendations: 
 

1. That the premises consider volunteering for the UV marking system in 
order to support the actions of the Police, Local Authority and other 
Agencies to any combat public nuisance issues within the vicinity of the 
Licensed Premises. 

2. That the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) explore the 
installation of an EPOS/ Till prompt system and that they report back to 
the Licensing Officer by 10 June 2013 with options for implementation, 
and that within one of year this date the agreed system be 
implemented in order to meet the Licensing Objective for the protection 
of children.   

 
The Sub-Committee issued a strict warning to the Licensed Premises Holder 
that all reasonable measures must be taken in order to prevent any further 
underage sales at the Licensed Premises. 
   
The Sub Committee considered the Conditions imposed to be necessary, 
reasonable and proportionate in order to meet the Licensing Objectives. 
 

Chair 
(Note: The Meeting opened at 10.00 am and closed at 2.15 pm) 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



PREDETERMINATION/PREDISPOSITION - GUIDANCE 

 
The Council often has to make controversial decisions that affect people adversely and 
this can place individual members in a difficult position. They are expected to represent 
the interests of their constituents and political party and have strong views but it is also 
a well established legal principle that members who make these decisions must not be 
biased nor must they have pre-determined the outcome of the decision. This is 
especially so in “quasi judicial” decisions in planning and licensing committees. 
This Note seeks to provide guidance on what is legally permissible and when members 
may participate in decisions. It should be read alongside the Code of Conduct. 
 
Predisposition 
 
Predisposition is lawful. Members may have strong views on a proposed decision, and 
may have expressed those views in public, and still participate in a decision. This will 
include political views and manifesto commitments. The key issue is that the member 
ensures that their predisposition does not prevent them from consideration of all the 
other factors that are relevant to a decision, such as committee reports, supporting 
documents and the views of objectors. In other words, the member retains an “open 
mind”. 
 
Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 confirms this position by providing that a decision 
will not be unlawful because of an allegation of bias or pre-determination “just because” 
a member has done anything that would indicate what view they may take in relation to 
a matter relevant to a decision. However, if a member has done something more than 
indicate a view on a decision, this may be unlawful bias or predetermination so it is 
important that advice is sought where this may be the case. 
 
Pre-determination / Bias  
 
Pre-determination and bias are unlawful and can make a decision unlawful. 
Predetermination means having a “closed mind”. In other words, a member has made 
his/her mind up on a decision before considering or hearing all the relevant evidence.  
Bias can also arise from a member’s relationships or interests, as well as their state of 
mind.  The Code of Conduct’s requirement to declare interests and withdraw from 
meetings prevents most obvious forms of bias, e.g. not deciding your own planning 
application.  However, members may also consider that a “non-pecuniary interest” 
under the Code also gives rise to a risk of what is called apparent bias. The legal test is: 
“whether the fair-minded and informed observer, having considered the facts, would 
conclude that there was a real possibility that the Committee was biased’.  A fair minded 
observer takes an objective and balanced view of the situation but Members who think 
that they have a relationship or interest that may raise a possibility of bias, should seek 
advice. 
 
This is a complex area and this note should be read as general guidance only. 
Members who need advice on individual decisions, should contact the Monitoring 
Officer. 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Review Application Report 

`  

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

(Item)  

 
 

 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
DRINKS DIRECT SUPERMARKET LTD 

 256 High Street, Langley, Slough. SL3 8HA 
 

Review of Premises Licence – Number PL004630 
Application made by Slough Borough Council Trading Standards Service 

 

 
 
1. CURRENT POSITION 
 
1.1 On the 17th April 2013, Slough Borough Council’s Trading Standards Service brought a 

Review of the Premises Licence for Drinks Direct Supermarket Ltd, 256 High Street, 
Langley, Slough, SL3 8HA.  

 
Licences 
 
1.2 Drinks Direct operates under a Premises Licence number PL004630.  The Premises       

Licence Holder and named Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is Mr Charanjit 
Singh Arura, who holds a Personal Licence (number LBHIL0918) issued by the London 
Borough of Hillingdon. 

 
1.3 The DPS is responsible for the day to day management of the premises. 
 
1.4 The Premises Licence authorises the carrying out of the Relevant Licensable Activities 

as follows: 
 

• M - The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption Off the premises only 
 

1.5 The times the Licence authorises the Licensable Activities are: 
 
        Monday to Saturday -  08.00am to 11.00pm 
        Sunday -                         10.00am to 10.30pm 
        Good Friday -                  08.00am to 10.30pm 
        Christmas Day -   Noon to 10.00pm 
 
        A copy of the current Premises Licence is attached at Appendix A. 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1    The grounds of Review are: 
 

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder,  
2. Public Safety  
3. The Protection of Children from Harm,  

 
The full Review Application and supporting evidence are contained at Appendices B 
and C. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 11



Review Application Report 

2.2 The grounds for the current Review Application are based on the following: 
 

• On 10th April 2013 Trading Standards inspected the premises of Drinks Direct 
and seized; 

- 36 x packs of cigarettes, with non-English health warnings 
- 16 x pouches of hand rolling tobacco (50g) with non-English health warnings 
- 9 x packs of tobacco ‘shisha’, bearing no government health warnings 
- Approximately, 100 x packets/pouches of ‘smokeless’ chewing tobacco (e.g. 

Gutkha, Khaini, Udta Pancchi, etc) bearing no government health warnings 
- 9 x bottles of counterfeit Jacobs Creek wine 
- Packets of imported prescription only medicines 
 
Illegal possession of all the above items constitute offences under the Trade 
Marks Act 1994, the Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008 
and the Tobacco Products (Manufacture, Presentation and Sale) (Safety) 
Regulations 2002 (as amended) 

 

• That the premises were subject of a previous Review Application in 2012 
again made by Trading Standards Service for selling alcohol to an underage 
person, selling cigarettes to an underage person, selling fireworks in breach of 
the fireworks licence conditions and being found in possession for sale of 
counterfeit alcohol, condoms and batteries. 

 

• In 2007 counterfeit Durex condoms and imported cigarettes were seized and 
in 2008 a written warning was given to Drinks Direct following the seizure of 
counterfeit vodka and Durex condoms. (These two seizures were also 
detailed within the previous review in 2012) 

 
2.3 Advice on underage sales had previously been provided to the business in October 

2005, January 2008 and July 2009 
 
2.4 The Premises were subject to a previous Review Application made by Trading 

Standards Officers in 2012 following the sale of both alcohol and tobacco products to 
underage persons on 16th November 2011 and the sale of fireworks outside the allowed 
sale period on 17th November 2011. 

 
2.5 At the previous Review hearing the Committee having carefully considered all the 

information available, decided to impose the following on the Premises Licence: 
 

• The Premises Licence Holder is required to undertake the requirements of the 
Council’s can-marking scheme. 

 

• CCTV to be installed and recordings to be kept for 31 days (compliant with Home 
Office regulations) and made available upon the request of Thames Valley Police or 
the Licensing Authority. 

 

• Staff to be trained on how to work the CCTV system where a staff member can 
download any potential evidence if required by Thames Valley Police or the Licensing 
Authority. 

 

• In accordance with Central Government guidance and due to the seriousness of the 
incident highlighted the Sub-Committee also decided to issue the premises with a 
“Yellow Card”. It was highlighted that if a further review was necessary and 
matters had not improved, the premises licence could be revoked. (see 
Appendix D) 

 

 

Page 12



Review Application Report 

2.6 For the offence on 16th November 2011 Drinks Direct were convicted and fined £900.00 
and ordered to pay costs of £1005.74 with the seller Mr Grover being fined £300.00 and 
ordered to pay costs of £150.00. For the offence on 17th November 2011 Mr Charanjit 
Singh Arura was convicted and fined £1,000.00 and ordered to pay costs of £850.00. 

 
3. APPLICATION – REVEW OF PREMISES LICENCE 
 
3.1  The Licensing Authority is satisfied that this application for Review meets the 
          appropriate legislative requirements within the Licensing Act 2003 and is 
          therefore a valid application to be considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee. 
 
3.2  There are various grounds on which a Review Application may be triggered and 
          these  
 

• 1 or more sales to minors of alcohol or any other age restricted product 

• Reports of anti-social behaviour linked to the premises 

• Evidence of proxy sales 

• Sales of alcohol outside trading hours 

• Other crime and disorder connected to the premises 

• Sales of counterfeit or substitute goods 
 
3.3  The recommendation made by the Trading Standards Service, due to the recent 
          seizure, and of the previous history and management of the premises is that there is 
          no other alternative than the premises being issued with a “Red Card” and for the 
          Premises Licence to be revoked. 
 
4.  REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
4.1 Responses to the Review Application from Responsible Authorities have been 

received. 
 
4.2 The Thames Valley Police Licensing Officer has responded by supporting the Review 

Application and recommendations being made.   
 
         The full written response is attached at Appendix E. 
 
4.3 The Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service confirmed that they do not propose to 

make a representation. This response is attached at Appendix F. 
 
4.4 There have not been any responses from any other Responsible Authorities. 
 
5. RELEVANT GUIDANCE    
 

The amended guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 was 
published in October 2012 and the salient points that the Committee must have regard 
to for Review Applications are detailed below: 

 
11.1    The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club 
           premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems 
           associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises 
           licence or club premises certificate. 
 
11.2    At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a 
           responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review 
           the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection 
           with any of the four licensing objectives. 
 

Page 13



Review Application Report 

11.10 Where authorised persons and Responsible Authorities have concerns about problems 
          identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning 
          of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should 
          advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those 
          concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a 
          decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing 
          objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this 
          co-operation. 
 
11.16  The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may 
           exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the 
           promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
11.17  The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any 
           further steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. In addition, there is 
           nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence 
           holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is 
           expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important 
           mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that 
           warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder. 
 
11.18  However, where responsible authorities like the police or environmental health officers 
           have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or in writing – that 
           have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing 
           authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account 
           when considering what further action is appropriate. 
 
11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is 
          appropriate, it may take any of the following steps: 
 
          • to modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
            conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by 
            reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 
 
          • to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 
            the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 
            incidental live and recorded music exemption); 
 
          • to remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider 
            that the problems are the result of poor management; 
 
          • to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 
           • to revoke the licence. 
 
11.20 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities 
          should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that 
          the representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at 
          these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate 
          response. 
 
11.21 For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal 
          and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a 
          problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management 
          decisions made by that individual. 
 
11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company 

Page 14



Review Application Report 

          practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be 
          an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review 
          hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a 
          succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of 
          deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives. 
 
11.23 Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions 
          of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of 
          up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three 
          months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be 
          expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing 
          objectives. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means 
          of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to 
          happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial 
          impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and 
          proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives. But where premises are 
          found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing authority should not hesitate, where 
          appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle the problems at the premises and, 
          where other measures are deemed insufficient, to revoke the licence. 
 
 5.1   The committee should also consider and make use of the ‘Yellow and Red 
         Card’ system as directed and recommended by The Department of Culture, 
         Media and Sport (DCMS) and as approved by the Licensing Committee. 
 
5.2    The procedure to be followed for the Review hearing is attached at Appendix G. 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A  -  Copy of Premises Licence for Drinks Direct PL004630 
 
Appendix B  -  Review Application and supporting information made by Trading 
                       Standards 
 
Appendix C  -  Review Application Supporting Information. 
  
Appendix D  -  Copy of ‘Yellow Card’ from April 2012 
  
Appendix E  -  Response from Debie Pearmain Thames Valley Police Licensing Officer 
 
Appendix F  -  Response from Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service  
 
Appendix G  - Procedure to be followed for Review hearing. 
 
Background papers 
 
- The Licensing Act 2003 
 
- Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 - (Revised October 

2012) 
 
- Regulations (cited as the Licensing Act 2003 ([Various]) Orders 2005 
 
- Slough Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy - December 2010 
 
- DCMS Guidance – Red and Yellow Card System 
 
- LACORS Guidance to Trading Standards as a Responsible Authority: Reviews 

Page 15



Review Application Report 

 
Contact Officer 
 
Michael Sims 
Licensing Manager 
Enforcement and Regulatory Services 
01753 477387 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



 

Appendix D 

 

 

YELLOW CARD 

 
‘Drinks Direct –256 High Street, Langley SLOUGH,  

SL3 8HA 

 
These premises have been subject of an application to Review the Premises Licence made by 
Thames Valley Police under Section 51 Licensing Act 2003 as the operators have failed to meet the 
Licensing Objectives under the Act. 
 
The Review application was heard by the Slough Borough Council Licensing Sub Committee on 26

th
 

April 2012 who have imposed tough new conditions on the licence as well as to issue the premises 
with a Yellow Card in accordance with Central Government Guidance, due to the seriousness of the 
incident highlighted as a warning that if a further review is necessary and matters have not improved, 
the premises licence may be revoked.   
 
Having carefully considered all the information submitted, the Sub-Committee decided that the 
following conditions be included on the premises licence:- 
 

1. The Premises Licence Holder is required to undertake the requirements of the Council’s can-
marking scheme. 

 
2. CCTV to be installed and recordings to be kept for 31 days (compliant with Home Office 

regulations) and made available upon the request of Thames Valley Police or the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
3. Staff to be trained on how to work the CCTV system where a staff member can download any 

potential evidence if required by Thames Valley Police or the Licensing Authority. 
 
The Sub Committee considered the conditions imposed to be necessary, reasonable and 
proportionate to address concerns relating to protection of children from harm. 
 

This notice is to be clearly and visibly displayed at the premises for a period of 12 months. 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



H/s/env/CH/LI/FORM –authority rep 

 
 

APPENDIX E 

Responsible Authority Representation Form 
 
Thames Valley Police, Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service, Health and 
Safety Executive, Area Child Protection Committee, Slough Borough Council 
[SBC] Commercial Services (Health and Safety and Trading Standards), Planning 
and Development Control Services [SBC], Public Health Services [SBC]. 
 
 
APPLICATION DETAILS 

 
 
Name of Premises 
 

 
Drinks Direct Supermarket Ltd 
 
 

 
Address of Premises 
& Tel: No. 
  
 

256 High Street 
Langley 
Berkshire 
SL3 8HA 
 
 

 
Applicant Details 
(Name, address, Tel: 
No.) if different from 
above 
 

 
Debie Pearmain 

 
Company Name (if 
different from Applicant) 
  
 

 
Police Licensing Officer 
Windsor Police Station 
Alma Road 
Windsor 
Berkshire  
SL4 3ES 
 

 
Application type 
(state fully) 
 

 
Review application submitted by Dean Cooke, Senior Trading 
Standards Officer, Slough Borough Council 
 
 
 

 
Date Application 
received 
 

 
18/04/2013 

 

Page 45



H/s/env/CH/LI/FORM –authority rep 

 
REPRESENTATION SUBMISSION 

 
                                                    Please tick  
   

There are no representations to the granting of this licence 

 

 

 

 

 

If you are making representations to the application identify which of the four 
licensing objectives  your representation relates to: 

Please detail your representation and the reason together with your supporting 
evidence, as appropriate.  (If replying by hard copy, please attach separate sheet(s) if 
necessary ).  

 

Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder 

 

 

Please tick 

√ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Safety 

 

 

 

√  

 

 

 

 

 

Prevention of Public 
Nuisance 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Protection of Children 
from Harm 

 

√  

 

 

 

 

Page 46



H/s/env/CH/LI/FORM –authority rep 

 

Please provide advice to the Licensing Sub-Committee on how you believe they 
should consider the representation.    

If appropriate, recommend conditions that could be added to the Licence to remedy 
your representation or other suggestions you would like the Licensing Sub-Committee 
to take into account.    

If replying by hard copy, please attach separate sheet(s), if necessary.  

Please refer to the Responsible Authority Guidance Note. 

Thames Valley Police fully support Trading Standards in this review application. Looking 
at the history of the premises, as detailed in the review application, it does cause us 
alarm and concern., with three of the four licensing objectives being undermined. 

Only last February 2012 Trading Standards applied for a review of the premises licence, 
this followed an under-age sale of alcohol and the selling of fireworks out of the 
specified sale time. The Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor, 
Mr Charanjit Singh Arura must be showing due diligence at all times. It would appear 
given the history which involves seizure of counterfeit vodka, durex condoms and 
imported cigarettes that Mr Arura is clearly not doing so. He appears to not have any 
regard for the law, Authority and the licensing objectives. We must ask the question how 
many ‘chances’ does the Premises Licence Holder have? The Business were issued a 
‘Yellow Card’ at the last review hearing in 2012. 

Thames Valley Police fully agree with Trading Standards request for the premises 
licence to be revoked. 

Name of Officer 
completing 
Representation 

Debie Pearmain 

Job Title Police Licensing Officer 

Name of Responsible 
Authority 

Thames Valley Police 

E-mail address: 

Tel: No. 

Debie.pearmain@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk 

 
N.B. If you do make a representation you will be expected to attend the Licensing 

Sub-Committee hearing and any subsequent appeal proceedings. 
 
Signed: Debie Pearmain 
 

Date: 18/04/2013 
 

Please return this form along with any additional sheets, if replying by hard copy to: 
 

The Licensing Team 
Public Protection Services 
Landmark Place 
High Street    
Slough    
SL1 1JL     Or  E-mail to Licensing@Slough.gov.uk 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

APPENDIX G 
 

PROCEDURE FOR LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

1. The Chairman will open the meeting and introduce those present, including 
members of the Committee, and ensure that all parties are informed of the 
procedure to be followed. 

 
2. The Committee will consider any request made by a party for permission for a 

person other than his representation as stated in his notice that he intends to 
attend or be represented at the hearing. 

 
3. The Licensing Officer will introduce the report and outline the application. 
 
4. The police, responsible authorities and interested parties if represented at the 

Committee may present relevant facts. 
 
5. The Chairman will invite questions from the  
 

• Applicant or representative 

• Committee 
 
6. The applicant or representative will present his case and call any other persons 

invited to appear to make representations. 
 
7. The Chairman will invite questions from 
 

• The police, responsible authorities and interested parties  

• The Committee 
 
8. The police, responsible authorities and interested parties will make any closing 

remarks to the Committee if they so wish. 
 
9. The applicant or representative will make any closing remarks to the Committee if 

he so wishes. 
 
10. The Committee may then decide the matter in private in which case all persons 

other than the legal adviser and Committee Clerk will then withdraw from the 
meeting. 

 
11. The parties will be recalled and the Chairman will announce the Committee’s 

decision and the reasons for reaching that decision. 
 
 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 107

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 121

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 123

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 8th March, 2013
	3 Guidance on Predetermination/Predisposition - To Note
	4 Review of Premises Licence, Drinks Direct Supermarket, 256 High Street, Langley, Slough.
	Drinks Direct-App A
	Drinks Direct Appendix B
	Drinks Direct -App C
	Appendix D YELLOW CARD Drinks Direct
	App E TVP Responsible Authority Response
	App F Drinks Direct
	Appendix G PROCEDURE FOR LICENSING SUB

	6 Private Hire Driver Conduct Hearing (Reference 01-13)
	Kamal Balkhi Appendix A
	Kamal Balkhu Appendix B - Certificate of Compliance
	Kamal Balhki Appendix B1 - Insurance Certificate
	Kamal Balkhi Appendix C
	Kamal Balkhi Appendix D
	Kamal Balkhi Appendix E

	7 Private Hire Driver Conduct Hearing (Reference 02-13)
	Sadaqat Basharat App A
	Sadaqat Basharat Appendix B
	Sadaqat Basharat Appendix C

	8 Private Hire Driver Conduct Hearing (Reference 03-13)
	Wasim Ahmed Appendix A
	Wasim Ahmed Appendix B
	Wasim Ahmed Appendix C
	Wasim Ahmed Appendix D
	Wasim Ahmed Appendix E
	Wasim Ahmed Appendix F

	9 Private Hire Driver Conduct Hearing (Reference 04-13)
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix A
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix B
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix C
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix D
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix E
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix F
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix G
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix H
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix I
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix J
	Harjinder S Gahir Appendix K


